ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 12, 2007
3:34 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Charlie Huggins, Chair
Senat or Lyda G een

Senator Gary Stevens

Senator Bill W el echowski

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Bert Stedman, Vice Chair
Senator Lesil MQiire
Senat or Thomas WAgoner

COW TTEE CALENDAR
Confirmati on Heari ngs:
Bi g Gane Conmercial Services Board

Leif WIson
CONFI RVATI ON ADVANCED

Departnment of Fish and Gane
Denby Ll oyd - Comm ssi oner
HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO 109

"An Act relating to the regulation and permtting of drilling
and other operations by the Alaska O and Gas Conservation
Commi ssion, to civil penalties assessed by the commssion, to
reconsi deration and appeal of decisions and the allocation of
costs in investigations and hearings before the conm ssion, and
to information filed with and fees of the comm ssion; and
providing for an effective date."

SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record.
W TNESS REG STER

Leif WIson, designee

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- March 12, 2007



Bi g Gane Conmercial Services Board
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Nomi nee to the Board

Denby Ll oyd, Conm ssi oner desi gnhee
Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane ( ADF&G
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Nom nee as Conmi ssi oner

Dave Crow ey, representing hinself
Cordova, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comented on confirmati

Dave O ness, representing hinself
Seward, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conment ed on confirmati

Steve Flory, representing hinself
Anchor age, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conment ed on confirmati

Tom Harris, representing hinself
Juneau, AK
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conment ed on confirmati

David Martin, representing hinself
Kenai, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comrent ed on confirnati

Steve Vani k, representing hinself
Ni nil chik, AK
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conment ed on confirmati

Jeff Burger, owner

Deep Creek Custom Packi ng

Ni ni | chik, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conment ed on confirmati

Ace Cal | oway, representing hinself
Fox, AK
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conment ed on confirmati

Lynn Levengood

Al aska Wl dlife Conservation Associ ation
Fai r banks, AK

PGSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comrent ed on confirmati

M ke Ti nker, representing hinself
Fai r banks, AK

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2-

of ADF&G

on

on

on

on

on

on

on

on

on

March 12, 2007



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commrented on confirmation

Tom Scar bor ough, representing hinsel f
Fai r banks, AK
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comrented on confirmation

Bob Thor st enson, President

United Fi sherman of Al aska

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comrent ed on confirmation

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
CHAIR CHARLIE HUGA NS called the Senate Resources Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 3:34:26 PM Present at the call to
order were Senators G een, Stevens, Welechowski and Huggins.

CONFI RVATI ON_ HEARI NGS

3:34: 59 PM
CHAIR HUGA NS announced the first order of business to be
confirmation hearings.

LEIF WLSON, nonminee to the Big Gane Commercial Services Board,
said he has served on the board already and is honored to be
reappoi nted. He said nost of the problens facing the industry do
not have easy sol utions; he then expl ained his work history.

3:37:17 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS asked M. WIlson to remi nd himwhen the board cane
back i nto exi stence.

MR WLSON replied that it had done so two years prior. He was
originally appointed about eight nonths after it was recreated.

CHAI R HUGE NS asked himto share some board success stories.

MR. WLSON answered that the board had enacted a whole |ot of
ethics legislation. He thought they were going in the right
direction, but he nentioned that a big problem is overcrowding
in the field; it's not so easy to get a guide |icense now. A
person nust pass a test and have experience guiding. The board
may need help from the legislature to deal with sone of its
I Ssues.

3:40: 41 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- March 12, 2007



CHAIR HUGA NS asked what is done when a guide |ands on federal
| and i n anot her guide’'s area.

MR. WLSON replied that that he would talk to them as another
i ndi vidual and attenpt to nedi ate.

CHAI R HUGE NS asked himto answer as a board nenber.

MR WLSON replied that the board can’t do anything with private
individuals on private lands. The guides currently can have
three gui de-use areas apiece, but they can be swapped around.
This issue is one of the biggest problens facing the industry;
there should be a firmer system for |limting the nunber of
transporters in a certain area.

3:43: 53 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS asked how the board would respond to a
hypot heti cal situation.

MR WLSON replied in explaining how prosecution in such a
situation woul d work.

CHAIR HUGA NS asked if any negative situations have transpired
that the commttee should know about.

MR W LSON answer ed no.

CHAIR HUGEA NS read a statenment outlining the process for
confirmation.

SENATOR STEVENS noved to forward his nane. There were no
obj ecti ons.

3:46: 29 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS cal |l ed an at-ease.

3:47:14 PM

CHAIR HUGEA NS called the neeting back to order and announced
that the commttee would be considering the nom nation of Denby

LIl oyd for the position of Al aska Departnent of Fish and Gane
(ADF&G) comm ssi oner.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- March 12, 2007



DENBY LLYOD, Commi ssioner designee for the ADF&G gave a brief
overvi ew of his work background.

3:51:12 PM

SENATOR STEVENS commended him on his service, and said that it
will be interesting to have him in the position. He asked for
himto cormment on the federal decision to allow fish farmng in
Washi ngt on.

MR. LLOYD replied that the ADF& G is very concerned that the
governors don't have enough deci sion-maki ng authority about what
can be grown on their shores; states should have an opt-in
position. There is the potential for disease and conpetition for
wild Alaska fish. The ADF&G doesn’t want it outlawed, but the
state should be able to make the decision to allowit.

3:53: 08 PM

SENATOR GREEN asked what the current statute says about fish
farm ng.

MR. LLOYD replied that the state doesn't allow fish farm ng, but
it allows aquacul ture.

3:53:47 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked him to comment on how his nane was
forwarded to the governor for appointnent.

MR, LLOYD replied that advertisenents soliciting applications
for the job were placed in |local papers for two weeks. He didn't
know how many applicants the admnistration received, but he
heard that it was quite a few A board went through them and
decided on a short list to interview that sanme day. The joint
board met in executive session and they voted on the nane to
forward to the governor.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked for himto comment on how the statute
regardi ng nom nati ons has been interpreted.

MR. LLOYD replied that an assistant attorney general advised the
committee on making the list, which could contain one or nore
nanes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSBKI asked if he is willing to base his wildlife
managenent on sci ence.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- March 12, 2007



MR. LLOYD replied yes.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if he is commtted to fairness and
equitability between comrercial and sport fishing.

MR. LLOYD replied that he is, and he has and will carry hinself
in a neutral fashion regarding allocation issues.

3:57:31 PM

CHAI R HUGGE NS asked how many enpl oyees the ADF&G has.

MR. LLOYD replied that there are approxi mately 1, 700.

CHAI R HUGA NS asked for the m ssion statenent of ADF&G

MR. LLOYD replied that he didn't have the exact wording, but
it’s essentially to maintain and inprove the wldlife resources

in the state of Al aska.

CHAIR HUGGA NS asked if he intended to continue with performance
nmeasures in the departnent.

MR. LLOYD said that that exercise will continue.
CHAI R HUGGE NS asked for his top four goals as comm ssioner.

MR. LLOYD replied he hoped to |eave the departnent stronger in
terms of staff notivation, operating condition, abundance
managenent, and equitabl e distribution of benefits.

CHAI R HUGE NS asked for comment on the issue of subsistence.

MR. LLOYD replied the ADF&G is in a dual nanagenent situation,
and it nust make sure the federal agencies don't exceed their
mandate. In nore global terms, the departnent’s approach isn't
to reduce subsistence opportunity, but to make sure people are
acting according to the |aw.

CHAIR HUGA NS said that there have been issues with the state
sockeye salnon fishery and asked where the paraneters lie for
escapemrment studies.

4:00: 58 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- March 12, 2007



MR. LLOYD replied that the objective of the recent study was to
find the best way of determining sockeye escapenent. He
expl ai ned how the departnent uses sonar stations, and discussed
the history of escapenent figures and the study, the findings of
which will be valuable in planning future allocations.

CHAI R HUGE NS asked for clarification on fish studies.
MR. LLOYD replied in explaining study |ocations.

CHAIR HUGGA NS said that sone people don't agree with him on
estimati on of escapenment nunbers.

MR. LLOYD explained how the forner sonar counter didn't
represent fish nunbers accurately. He added that surveys in Cook
Inl et streanms have shown relatively high nunbers of fish.

CHAIR HUGE NS said that some habitats need escapenent
i nprovenent, and asked how the nunmbers of fish can be increased.

MR. LLOYD replied the harvest could be restricted, and habitat
i nprovenent and enhancenment opportunities could be considered.
The main factor is the harvest rate of the fishery leading into
the system He nentioned a study to nmeasure the Cook Inlet stock
nunbers which could be useful in designing fishery openings and
cl osures.

CHAIR HUGGA NS asked if he was confident with the approach and
results of that study.

MR. LLOYD replied that he was, and nentioned previous types of
studi es that were not as discerning.

4:09: 07 PM

SENATOR STEVENS asked how M. Lloyd would work with the North
Paci fic Fisheries Managenent Council .

MR. LLOYD replied that he plans to fill a seat on the counci
hi msel f, and said that on the council the ADF&G is not neutral
it represents Al aska against potential opposing interests. He
gave an exanple of past work with the council

4:11: 28 PM

SENATOR MCGUI RE commented that M. Lloyd' s appointnent had
generated a lot of constituent coments, and said that her

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- March 12, 2007



concern is regarding his know edge of gane nanagenent. She said
that Governor Palin wants to manage for abundance, and asked how
he will inplement that strategy.

MR. LLOYD said that he agrees with the governor's stance on
abundance, and that habitat inprovenment and hunting restrictions
should be inposed. There are areas where predators are taking
what humans could harvest, and where science shows that a
reduction in predator populations would result in an increased
harvest for humans, predators should be controll ed.

4:14: 28 PM

SENATOR MCGUIRE said the decision to appoint Kenton Taylor as
deputy conmm ssioner is also controversial, and asked if his
phil osophy is in line wth that of the ADF&G

MR LLOYD replied the ADF&G sorted through a nunber of
candidates for the position, and saw that there were conpeting
interests. M. Taylor has wi de recognition of his high standards
of professional ethics; some people think he is not strong in
predator control, but that’s not the case.

4:16:28 PM

SENATOR MCQUI RE asked himto el aborate on his conversations with
M. Tayl or regardi ng predator control.

MR. LLOYD replied that M. Taylor does think predator control is
i mportant, but they hadn't yet spoken of when, where, or how it
wi |l be done.

4:18: 47 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS said that a nunber of sports fishing organizations
supported M. Lloyd s nomnation, and also were interested in
who he would choose as his deputy. He asked who else had a say
in hiring M. Tayl or.

MR. LLOYD replied that he consulted with the governor and her
chi ef advi sors.

CHAIR HUGE NS asked him to describe his hiring process, and

commented that sonme people didn't get an opportunity to express
their preferences for the deputy position.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- March 12, 2007



MR. LLOYD acknow edged that there were conpeting recomendations
for the position.

CHAI R HUGE NS pointed out that M. Taylor's name was not on the
public |list of recommendati ons.

MR. LLOYD acknowl edged that M. Taylor’s nane wasn't wdely
circulated, and said he could wunderstand surprise at the
appoi nt nent .

4:22:15 PM
SENATOR GREEN asked how many deputy conmi ssioners there are.

MR. LLOYD replied that there are two deputy conmm ssioners; one
dealing with commercial fishery issues, and the other dealing
with sport fishing and wldlife issues.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if there is any precedent for hiring
met hods of deputy comm ssioners, and asked for coment on M.
Tayl or’ s backgr ound.

MR. LLOYD replied that he’s unaware of any previous process for
sel ecting conm ssioners, and that it is an exenpt position. He
expl ai ned how M. Taylor has had a |long and distingui shed career
in the departnment and ot her arenas.

4:26: 25 PM

CHAIR HUGE@ NS said that his constituents had voiced concerns
about a lack of say in the ADF&G appoi nt nents.

SENATOR MCGUI RE asked M. Lloyd to explain why he's qualified
for gane managenent.

MR.  LLOYD replied that he does have resource nmanagenent
experience, albeit not necessarily focused on gane.

SENATOR GREEN said she is concerned that there is an absence of
sport fishing experience between the conm ssioner and his
deputies, and asked if the ADF& has considered having a
separate conmm ssioner for sport fishing.

MR. LLOYD replied that it has, but that the departnent does have

a strong director of sport fisheries. It is talking about the
possi bility of addi ng another position.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 9- March 12, 2007



4:30: 26 PM

DAVE CROALEY, representing hinself, said that he supported
Senat or Wel echowski’s comments on statute interpretation, and
that he supports separate comm ssioners for fish and gane, the
|atter of which | acks representation.

MR. LLOYD commented on a recent Board of Game neeti ng.
CHAI R HUGGE NS asked for his position on sheep hunts.
MR. LLOYD replied that he didn’t have a position on that issue

BOB LINVILLE, representing hinself, explained his commercial
fishing background and said that he was hoping for nore
transparency in the ADF&G hiring process. He expressed concern
about M. Lloyd' s position on geoduck farm ng, and nentioned the
importance of his seat on the North Pacific Fisheries Council
and his opinions on sonme particular fisheries.

MR. LLOYD agreed that representation on the council is very
inmportant, but said that he didn't agree wth sonme of its
positions. He discussed crab and cod fisheries, and said that he
want s to | ook for opportunities t hat don't i ncl ude
privatization. He does want to institute changes for coastal
fishing conmmunities.

SENATOR MCGQUIRE asked for M. Lloyd's coments on geoduck
farm ng.

MR. LLOYD replied that he hasn't testified on the issue on
guestion, but explained that the departnent has concerns about
introducing the shellfish in certain parts of the state; the
departnment woul d support farmng in certain additional areas.

SENATOR MCGUI RE requested that a representative from the ADF&G
attend the Administrative Regulatory Review commttee neeting
the foll ow ng day.

4:42:21 PM
SENATOR STEVENS nentioned the need to keep ownership of
resources in Alaska and the need to provide the opportunity for

younger Al askans to get into the industry, and asked how control
can be gotten back

SENATE RES COW TTEE -10- March 12, 2007



MR. LLOYD replied that the ADF&G won’t be planning to nmake any
public ownership nore privatized. It'’s a matter of Ilimting
access to fisheries; there can be a reasonabl e managenent regine
wi t hout giving up public ownership.

4:44: 26 PM

CHAIR HUGEA NS asked for conment on charter boat halibut fishing
l[imts.

MR. LLOYD replied that there are short term md-term and |ong
term proposals for the issue; the state wants to nmaintain
control of allocation decisions, and reducing the quota
i medi ately would unduly affect the charter boat business. A
md-term proposal is a noratorium on new entry into the halibut
fleet which would stabilize participants in the industry. The
|l ong-term solution is in how to allocate privileges within the
noratorium there are many various proposals for doing so that
wi || be consi dered.

4:48:22 PM

DAVE OINESS, representing hinself, said he served on Governor
Palin's ADF&G transition team and shared his strong concerns
about how the joint boards |et Alaskans down; he wants the
appoi ntment process investigated, but |ooks forward to the new
adm ni stration.

MR. LLOYD commented that a one-nane list was forwarded in 1995
as well; it's not a new i ssue.

CHAIR HUGA NS nentioned that the conmittee had heard from
several people who voted on the nom nations.

4:52: 34 PM

STEVE FLORY, representing hinmself, said that his concern is over
a statute that says the joint boards shall neet together in the
m dst of the nom nation process, and nore than one nane should

be recomended; the governor should not misinterpret the
statute.

MR. LLOYD said that the governor has had plenty of opportunity
to question himon his policies.

4:56: 33 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- March 12, 2007



TOM HARRIS, representing hinself, said that the nom nation
process should be reviewed. He commented on decreasing wildlife
popul ations in Al aska, and how ADF&G i s not hel ping the probl em
He added that he supports M. Lloyd s nom nation.

4:59:32 PM

DAVID MARTIN, representing hinself, said he disagreed with only
one nane being forwarded for recommendation; the lack of
transparency erodes public support for governnent. There haven’t
been any nuch-needed personnel or policy changes in the ADF&G

5:02:55 PM

MR. LLOYD said that the upper Cook Inlet salnmon fishery issue is
very detailed, but boils down to conflicting mandates from the
fisheries board; nore clarity is needed before the departnent
can act.

CHAI R HUGGE NS asked for comment on the managenent of fisheries.

MR. LLOYD discussed escapenent and catch issues, and said that
t he departnent needs clear direction on those issues.

CHAIR HUGGA NS asked if he saw any correlation in managenent
t echni ques between Kenai, Susitna, and Yentna drai nage points.

MR. LLOYD replied that ongoing studies may provide information
on that issue.

CHAIR HUGA NS asked if fishing groups could use different sides
of Cook Inlet.

MR. LLOYD replied that that cannot yet be verified.
5:09: 32 PM

STEVE VAN K, representing hinself, said that he’' s opposed to the
appoi nt nent because of the unclear process, and is disappointed
in Governor Palin. He asked why M. Lloyd is hiring retired
people rather than new enployees or those in |line for
pronotions. He commented on the over-escapenent in recent years,
and said that managenment should be conservative. He nentioned a
petition asking for clarification on the process.

5:12:35 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE -12- March 12, 2007



MR. LLOYD said that the departnent has acknow edged that there
has been excessive escapenent in the past; the board can choose
consi der the problem outside the regul atory process.

5:13: 27 PM
JEFF BURGER, owner of Deep Creek Custom Packing, said that

people are having a hard time economcally in Cook Inlet. He
objected to having a single appointnent rather than a selection

from a list, and said that over-escapenent 1is absolutely
detrimental to the fish run. He said he supported another
candidate who wasn't on the final list, who is qualified and

honor abl e as opposed to M. Ll oyd.
5:15: 37 PM

ACE CALLOMY, representing hinself, said that he agreed wth
previ ous statenments about the nom nation process; he thanked M.
Ll oyd for his service, but said that he has concerns about the
attitude of the ADF& admnistration. He talked about the
energency order to close captain and crew fishing, and
conpl ained that he had not received a response on the issue to
vari ous email s.

MR. LLOYD said that he would give M. Calloway his emai
address, and said that a proposal regarding sport fishing was
only an option.

LYNN  LEVENGOOD, with the Alaska Wldlife Conservati on
Associ ation, opined that M. Lloyd did not have a plan to nanage
for abundance or know how to succeed with such a plan; the
organi zation opposes his nomnation, also because of the
nom nation process. He added that the ADF&G should nmanage on a
bi ol ogi cal basis and not one of personal feelings.

MR. LLOYD decline to respond.

M KE TINKER, representing hinself, said that M. Lloyd is not
fully qualified to be conm ssioner; ADF& gane nmanagenent isS
atroci ous. The appoi ntnment shoul d not be approved.

5:26: 34 PM

TOM SCARBOROUGH, representing hinself, said that Governor Palin

prom sed changes in the ADF&G and M. Lloyd’s nom nation is not
inline with that prom se, nor M. Taylor’s.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -13- March 12, 2007



5:28:25 PM

BOB THORSTENSON, president of United Fisherman of Al aska, said
he supports M. Lloyd as the highest caliber person for the job;
it’s not his fault that his was the only name forwarded to the
governor, and people should take issue with her or the boards.

5:31: 24 PM

CHAIR HUGGA NS said he has further questions for M. Lloyd that
will need to be answered; he thanked M. Lloyd, and, there being
no further business to conme before the comrttee, he adjourned
the neeting at 5:32:26 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE -14- March 12, 2007



